

Australian Government

**Department of Employment and Workplace Relations** 



## Corporate Plan 2024–25

Corporate plans are a requirement under section 35 of the *Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013.* The Department of Employment and Workplace Relations 2024–25 Corporate Plan is prepared in accordance with the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Rule 2014 and will be acquitted in the annual performance statements published in the Annual Report 2024–25.

#### Distribution

This report is available in digital and PDF versions from the Department of Employment and Workplace Relations and is published at <u>www.dewr.gov.au</u>.

#### Planning and Performance Team

External Budgets, Strategy and Performance Branch Department of Employment and Workplace Relations GPO Box 9828 Canberra ACT 2601 Telephone: 1300 488 064 Email: <u>performance@dewr.gov.au</u>

#### Acknowledgements

This report reflects the efforts of many people. Special thanks go to the departmental employees involved in contributing, coordinating and clearing material.

#### Copyright

ISSN 2653-8253



With the exception of the Commonwealth Coat of Arms, the department's logo, any material protected by a trade mark and where otherwise noted all material presented in this document is provided under a <u>Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 International (https://</u> creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/) licence.

The details of the relevant licence conditions are available on the Creative Commons website (accessible using the links provided) as is the full legal code for the <u>CC BY 4.0 International</u> (https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/legalcode).

The document must be attributed as the Department of Employment and Workplace Relations 2024–25 Corporate Plan.



## Contents

Acknowledgement of Country Overview Secretary's introduction Our purpose Our portfolio Our operating environment Our environment Our commitment to Closing the Gap	4
Overview	5
Secretary's introduction	6
Our purpose	8
Our portfolio	9
Our operating environment	10
Our environment	11
Our commitment to Closing the Gap	13
Ways we work	14
How we work	15
Our governance	16
Our integrity	17
Our cooperation and partnerships	18
Our corporate strategies and operations	20
Embedding a positive risk culture	24
Operating risk environment	28
Our performance	29
Our performance framework	31
Measuring our performance	31
Our regulatory performance	32
Our performance measures	33
Acronyms	45
Compliance	47



## Acknowledgement of Country

The Department of Employment and Workplace Relations respectfully acknowledges the Traditional Owners and Custodians of Country throughout Australia, and their continuing connection to land, water and community. We pay our respects to the people, the cultures, and elders past and present, including within the department, in our communities and among those we collaborate with to deliver our work.

#### Wording within this document

Throughout this document, the term 'First Nations' is used and refers to Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples unless otherwise stated.

#### Cultural sensitivity advice

First Nations people should be aware that this document may contain the names and images of people who have passed away.



## Overview







## Secretary's introduction

#### The department supports people in Australia to have safe, secure and well-paid work with the skills for a sustainable future.

The employment, skills and workplace relations systems are highly interconnected and traverse key labour market levers. Reflecting the significant scope for complementary action across and between these systems, the department is uniquely positioned to shape Australia's current and future labour market and to drive productivity, inclusivity, and individual, social and environmental wellbeing. Our department's programs support the Australian Government's vision of full and inclusive employment.

We are working collaboratively across governments and with key stakeholders on key government priorities such as reforms to international education, implementing the Australian Universities Accord, employment services reform, the Net Zero transformation and improving women's equality and career opportunities.

**Closing the Gap** – The department remains committed to overcoming the entrenched inequality faced by First Nations people. In 2024–25 we will continue to embed the Closing the Gap priority reforms into our core functions through our Closing the Gap Strategy. We will implement key initiatives to improve the labour market prospects and outcomes of First Nations people, including a new service to support the transition from prison to work for First Nations people and by extending Broome Employment Services. We are investing in the 4 Priority Reforms outlined in the National Agreement on Closing the Gap. A top priority is working with our First Nations providers and peak organisations to improve our commissioning and service delivery models in order to encourage more First Nations organisations to deliver services on our behalf. We are also working to ensure all our service providers can demonstrate cultural proficiency in working with First Nations people.

**Employment services reform** – We are advising the government on reforming the employment services system to reflect the vision in the Employment white paper and taking into account the Rebuilding Employment Services report. These reforms will create a more responsive system that actively supports meaningful participation and secure and sustainable employment outcomes, with support designed to fit the needs of the individual.

An immediate priority is implementing changes to the employment services system announced in the 2024–25 Budget. The changes address pressing issues in employment services and are an incremental step towards larger scale reform. This includes better recognising individuals' circumstances in the mutual obligations required of them, strengthening the mechanisms through which participants can raise concerns and complaints about their employment service provider and trialling more targeted use of wage subsidies. The 2024–25 Budget changes build on the work already underway, including to implement Parent Pathways, a new voluntary pre-employment service for parents, and undertake employment services trials.

Investing in a Future Made in Australia – We are making new investments in our skills and training system so it can continue to address skills shortages and build the strong and highly skilled workforce to deliver what is needed to support the government's Future Made in Australia agenda. We will use the levers available in our workplace relations, skills and employment systems to support new industries and support communities and regions that are most impacted by the net zero transformation. **Skilling our future workforce** – The department continues to work with state and territory governments under the National Skills Agreement to support a strengthened vocational education and training (VET) sector.

We are funding the delivery of 20,000 additional Fee-free TAFE places in 2024–25 and increasing access to pre-apprenticeship programs in courses relevant to the construction sector.

We are supporting apprenticeships in key occupations through a range of financial payments to assist apprentices and employers.

The Australian Apprenticeship Support Services, and the Apprentice Connect Australia provider network, are delivering a range of personalised services and supports to help apprentices and employers over the life of their apprenticeship. This includes making sure apprentices are set up for success from the beginning, through the early identification of potential barriers to completion, and by providing mentoring support services to better meet their needs.

We will also pilot a reimbursement program for small and medium businesses taking on clean energy, construction and manufacturing apprentices through Group Training Organisations.

**Women's equality and opportunities** – We are supporting the government's women's equality agenda in 2024–25. This includes assisting women to enter well-paid careers through VET pathways and addressing gender segregation by removing barriers to women's participation in traditionally male occupations. We are also implementing the new voluntary pre-employment service for eligible parents of young children, Parent Pathways.

We are scrutinising employment services program data with a gender lens to identify and better understand whether and how gender impacts on the support and outcomes for women in the system.

Supporting women's economic equality is a key objective of the government's Secure Jobs, Better Pay and Closing Loopholes laws. Building on the review of awards in the care sector, in 2024–25, we will lead the government's participation in the Fair Work Commission's review of gender undervaluation in priority awards.

Workplace relations and work health and safety laws -

We are supporting the implementation of significant recent changes to the workplace relations and work health and safety frameworks arising from the Secure Jobs, Better Pay, Protecting Worker Entitlements and closing loopholes legislative packages, as well as the importation ban on engineered stone. We are consulting with stakeholders to develop relevant guidance, codes of practice and regulations that will support the effective operation of these reforms. How we work – In implementing measures and programs, the department focuses on public service stewardship and upholding the APS values. All senior leaders in the department are guided by the Secretaries Charter of Leadership behaviours to be Dynamic, be **Respectful**, have **Integrity**, **Value** others, and **Empower** people. The department is undertaking a program of work to transform how we work, increase capability, and enhance our ability to deliver for the government and the Australian people.

It is crucial that our department reflects the communities we serve. Fostering a truly inclusive workplace, we are committed to supporting gender diversity and to increasing the representation of First Nations people, individuals from cultural and linguistically diverse backgrounds, and people with disabilities, including in leadership positions. The department is prioritising embedding the Strategic Commissioning Framework in our practice and reducing our reliance on external labour.

Leveraging data – We are leveraging data and technology to strengthen the evidence base that supports skills on employment and workplace relations activities. The Chief Data Officer, working with the Data Governance Committee, will continue to implement the department's Data Strategy 2024–27 priorities, build on our data governance foundations, enhance our data capabilities and integrate our data with other government data assets to provide a much richer source of insights and analysis.

Through the Chief Data Officer, we will continue engaging across government to influence the direction of whole-of-government data initiatives, including Governance of Indigenous Data, the Disability Strategy and the Women's Economic Agenda.

#### Statement of preparation

As the Accountable Authority of the Department of Employment and Workplace Relations, I present the Department of Employment and Workplace Relations Corporate Plan for the reporting period 2024–25, which covers the period 2024–25 to 2027–28 as required under section 35(1)(b) of the *Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013* (PGPA Act).

Natalie James Secretary

August 2024

## Our purpose

Figure 1.1: The department's outcome statements, programs and key activities

## We support people in Australia to have safe, secure and well-paid work with the skills for a sustainable future

#### OUR OUTCOME STATEMENTS

Outcome 1	Outcome 2	Outcome 3
Foster a productive and competitive labour market through policies and programs that assist job seekers into work, including secure work, and meet employer and industry needs.	Promote growth in economic productivity and social wellbeing through access to quality skills and training.	Facilitate jobs growth, including secure work, through policies and programs that promote fair, productive and safe workplaces.
OUR PROGRAMS AND KE		

#### Program 1.1 – Employment Services

Key activities

- Provide quality services to job seekers and employers
- Support job seekers to achieve sustainable employment
- Support target groups to improve their work readiness and prepare for employment

Program 2.1 – Building Skills and Capability

Key activities

- Enhance the quality of vocational education and training (VET)
- Respond to national future skills needs through access to VET graduates with the required skills
- Improve language, literacy, numeracy and digital literacy (LLND) skills for target groups

#### Program 2.2 – VET Student Loans

Key activities

 Reduce barriers to undertaking quality VET

#### Program 2.3 – Nuclear-powered Submarine Program

Key activities

 Respond to national future skills needs through access to VET graduates with the required skills

Note: Program 3.2 listed in the Employment and Workplace Relations 2024–25 Portfolio Budget Statements covers the Comcare workers' compensation scheme and is managed by Comcare. Comcare reports against this program and associated performance measures in its annual report.

#### Program 3.1 – Workplace Support

Key activities

- Promote fair, productive and safe workplaces through policies and programs
- Support the protection of workers' entitlements

## Our portfolio

The Department of Employment and Workplace Relations supports 2 ministers and an assistant minister. We work closely with Jobs and Skills Australia, the Student Identifiers Registrar and statutory officers and statutory bodies within our portfolio in meeting our policy, program and regulatory responsibilities and delivering improved outcomes for the government and the community.





Jobs and Skills Australia's work plan is at <u>www.jobsandskills.gov.au/engage/about</u>. Annual reports for both Jobs and Skills Australia and the Student Identifiers Registrar are required by legislation to be included in the department's annual report.

Note: Comcare provides support through expert advice and services to the Safety, Rehabilitation and Compensation Commission and the Seafarers Safety, Rehabilitation and Compensation Authority (Seacare Authority).

# Our operating environment

## Our environment

As stewards of the labour market, we operate at the intersection of economic and social policy. Our operating environment presents challenges and opportunities for the department to progress our work of supporting people in Australia to have safe, secure and well-paid work with the skills for a sustainable future.

## The outlook continues to present challenges and opportunities

Social exclusion, economic vulnerability, and inequality continue to present barriers to people finding decent work and building their human capital.

The 2024–25 Budget outlook for Australia's economy was for subdued growth over the forecast period. Economic growth has slowed in Australia and many other advanced economies, in response to elevated inflation, disruptions to supply chains, and higher interest rates.

While Australians have experienced significant increases in the cost of living, inflation has now moderated. The costs of housing, particularly rental pressures, remain high but are expected to ease gradually.

The labour market has been resilient, with unemployment near its historical low and the participation rate near its record high. While unemployment is expected to remain low by historical standards, the labour market has softened and will continue to do so. There are some groups that have employment rates well below the national average, including First Nations people, people with disability, single mothers, and migrants from particular regions. There are also significant differences between regional labour markets. The persistently high unemployment experienced in some remote and regional areas, especially in northern Australia, is exacerbated by limited employment options, the lack of support services, and entrenched disadvantage, as noted in *Working Future: The Australian Government's White Paper on Jobs and Opportunities*.

Nominal wages growth has been the fastest in nearly 15 years, driven by the recent strength in the labour market and by administered wage decisions, including the Fair Work Commission's annual wage reviews and the aged care work value case. Administered wage decisions are expected to continue to support wages growth in the near term, and the government has announced funding for a 15% wage increase for early childhood education and care workers. Real wages growth has returned and is expected to continue across the Budget forecast horizon. The government has made wages growth a priority, balancing improvements in conditions with reforms to support wage increases. The gender pay gap has encouragingly narrowed to an historical low. Women continue to work more part-time hours than men and are more likely than men to be engaged on a casual basis, be on minimum and award wages, and have caring responsibilities. The department will lead the government's participation in the Fair Work Commission's review of gender undervaluation in priority awards.

Australia's commitment to reaching net zero greenhouse gas emissions by 2050, and the government's commitment to 82% renewable energy by 2030, are transforming our economy and impacting workers, industries and communities. The use of artificial intelligence (AI) is becoming more prevalent and has further implications for the labour market and skills acquisition. Many Australians have changed where and how they work, with more engaged in hybrid and remote work since the disruptions of COVID-19.

Net overseas migration is forecast to approximately halve in 2024–25 relative to 2022–23, as at the 2024–25 Budget. This reduction is partly driven by government actions under the Migration Strategy, which include improvements to the integrity, standing and reputation of Australia's VET sector.

We are responding to this environment by prioritising being evidence based, and engaging with experts and those who are impacted by our policies and programs. Focusing on evidence and on-the-ground experience enables us to develop policies and programs that are appropriately flexible and integrated so that they can respond to evolving, persistent and emerging labour market challenges.

## Supporting the government to respond to key priorities

Working Future: The Australian Government's White Paper on Jobs and Opportunities outlines the government's vision for a stronger, fairer and more inclusive economy, including employment services reform. Based on these principles, the department will support the government to create a responsive employment services system that actively promotes meaningful participation and secure and sustainable employment of people, as well as meeting the workforce needs of employers and industry. This includes building and embedding more active APS stewardship in the employment services system, alongside a range of providers and delivery partners. We will focus on a greater role for community organisations such as social enterprises and First Nations community-controlled organisations. These priorities reflect the government's response to the final report of the House of Representatives Select Committee on Workforce Australia Employment Services.

In February 2024, the Productivity Commission delivered its first report on the first review of the National Agreement on Closing the Gap, which concluded that progress has fallen short of expectations. It found that governments have not grasped the scale of change required to meet the commitments in the national agreement, and that greater ambition and effort are required. This plan details the department's commitment to Closing the Gap.

The government has commissioned the Strategic Review of the Australian Apprenticeships Incentive System to ensure that incentives and other non-financial support for apprenticeships are designed to optimise completion rates and address skill shortages to provide the skilled workers needed for Australia's growing economy. The report of the review is expected to be delivered to the government in late 2024.

The Pacific Australia Labour Mobility (PALM) scheme sits at the intersection of multiple government objectives. It is central to migration reform and Australia's foreign policy efforts in the Pacific and Timor-Leste. It also supports the government's

measures to address the unskilled, low-skilled and semi-skilled workforce shortages in agriculture, and food and fibre processing nationally and in rural and regional parts of Australia in a range of sectors. APS systems and processes will facilitate transparency and accountability and will drive business improvements.

On 11 June 2024, the *Public Service Amendment Act 2024* received Royal Assent. The Act provides for changes to build the capability and expertise of the APS and strengthen the APS's core values, including a new value of APS stewardship.

The department is focused on delivering programs, services and advice to meet the expectations of the government and the Australian people, underpinned by a framework and culture of integrity. This includes embedding the Strategic Commissioning Framework in our operating model while at the same time continuing to increase our economic and data capabilities to enhance our ability to deliver our programs and services.



## Our commitment to Closing the Gap

The department remains committed to working with First Nations Australia, governments, and non-government partners to help overcome the entrenched inequality faced by First Nations people. In 2024–25 we will continue to embed the Closing the Gap priority reforms into our core functions. This includes releasing and implementing our Closing the Gap Strategy, which will assist all departmental staff to take action by encouraging innovative approaches that promote a connected, collaborative way of working with First Nations people. We will also incorporate an assessment of Closing the Gap priority reform implementation into our standard internal audit criteria. These initiatives demonstrate the department's commitment to addressing the key findings of the Productivity Commission's recent review of government progress on implementing the National Agreement on Closing the Gap.

As a department that was created in 2022, DEWR has been working to develop its first Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP), which will be launched in late 2024. Our RAP Working Group developed the draft RAP in consultation with our First Nations Employee Network and other key stakeholders across the department. The RAP will help to ensure that our organisation is safe, inclusive and innovative, and that it builds greater understanding of and respect for the self-determination, resilience, strength, contribution and place of First Nations people and cultures in Australia. It will help us develop deep and collaborative relationships with First Nations people and organisations and to draw on their wisdom and lived experience, supporting our efforts to help close the gap. We will assist our staff to build their cultural responsiveness and we will create communities of practice to share our stories and learnings.

We are tightening our business planning processes and Senior Executive Service performance agreement practices to ensure Closing the Gap remains a key priority for everyone.

We will continue to work with First Nations peak bodies to support them to build their capacity to represent First Nations interests across the training and employment sectors. We will engage with peak bodies and First Nations owned and operated service providers as we embark on further reforms to employment services and implement the National Skills Agreement, for which Closing the Gap is a national priority with a focus on building genuine First Nations policy partnerships. We are reviewing our frameworks for commissioning services to the community to help ensure First Nations organisations can deliver services on our behalf in meaningful ways which help them, their communities and their clients to prosper.

In 2024–25 we will develop new ways to share our data holdings with First Nations organisations and communities and we will support them to build their capacity to access and analyse the data for their own purposes. We will continue to work closely with Jobs and Skills Australia to deepen the evidence base with respect to First Nations participation and workforce matters.

By implementing the redesigned Skills for Education and Employment program, we are expanding access to free English language, literacy, numeracy and digital skills training. This includes introducing a new dedicated grant to provide specific place-based and First Nations-led support for up to 2,000 people per year.

Building on the Time to Work Employment Service, we will implement a new program to improve the transition from the justice system to work for First Nations people. We are partnering with the recently established National Indigenous Employment and Training Alliance on the design and implementation of the new program.

We are co-designing and establishing a network of Remote Training Hubs in partnership with Central Australian communities and the Northern Territory Government. We have extended Broome Employment Services until June 2027 to continue delivering an innovative, place-based approach to employment servicing, where APS personnel work in partnership with the First Nations service provider.



### How we work

In 2024–25, the department will focus on areas of capability, governance and planning to transform how we work, aligning priorities with effort and enhancing our ability to deliver for the government and the Australian people. This work aims to align the existing, interconnected activities across the department to support an increasingly collaborative, adaptive and efficient organisation. It seeks to enable staff at all levels to contribute to ongoing positive change and innovation in the delivery of our work. Our delivery principles and leadership values will guide this work.

Our vision for our future workforce is to be inclusive, curious, collaborative, adaptable and high-performing to realise our purpose. We aim to set the standard, as a model employer, for engaging, meaningful work that puts inclusivity and employee wellbeing at the centre of what we do.



### Our governance

The department's governance framework (Figure 2.1) supports the Secretary, as the accountable authority, in her discharge of duties under the PGPA Act by providing a mechanism for oversight, transparency and collaboration in decision-making while supporting the department in achieving its purpose and key activities.

Our focus for 2024–25 is to implement changes arising from an internal governance review to ensure our governance operating model continues to enable effective decisionmaking and management oversight and further embeds effective governance practices throughout the department. Each group in the department – Corporate and Enabling Services; Workplace Relations; Skills and Training; and Employment and Workforce – also has internal governance arrangements in place to manage its policy and program deliverables.

#### Figure 2.1: Our governance framework



#### Legend:

Reporting to

For information only

## Our integrity

The department remains committed to implementing the public sector integrity reform agenda. Our Integrity Unit continues to support a robust, holistic and proactive approach to integrity across the department and helps ensure we comply with our obligations and public expectations.

A pro-integrity culture is pivotal to public service. We have educated our staff, contractors and service providers in relation to their roles, responsibilities and protections concerning integrity and performance.

In June 2024 we launched our Integrity Framework. With the aid of an independent Integrity Advisor, we developed the Integrity Framework on a foundation of Commonwealth integrity legislation, frameworks and policies. It provides guidance for staff and supports the policies and procedures that help create our pro-integrity culture. We also have clear policies to manage conflicts of interest and to guide transparency in decision-making. The department responds to integrity matters rigorously. We proactively encourage staff, providers and members of the public to report all integrity issues, such as matters relating to fraud and corruption. Reports can be submitted through our electronic reporting tool, which enables informants to engage in ongoing, anonymous dialogue with investigators.

The department will continue to monitor and improve its integrity policies, processes and frameworks.



## Our cooperation and partnerships

We are committed to engaging genuinely and maintaining meaningful relationships with partners and stakeholders. We work with people with lived experience, non-government organisations, communities, service providers, businesses, and other government agencies at all levels to develop, manage and deliver evidence-based policies, programs and systems to support businesses, industries and individuals. Our partnership approach in working with First Nations peoples is maturing and will continue to be a strong focus for the department – embedding the Closing the Gap priority reforms in the way we work. Using collective wisdom and broader perspectives is key to devising creative policy and program solutions to complex problems.

We continue to mature practices across the department to better connect with stakeholders effectively, work collaboratively, reduce duplication and build in efficiencies. We are incorporating additional tools to support our goals in genuine engagement.

#### Over the course of this plan, our approach will include:

- working in partnership with First Nations people on Closing the Gap and other initiatives
- seeking opportunities to co-design better policies and programs, including better understanding the user perspective and working with the people most affected by our services to shape employment services reform
- facilitating and supporting ongoing consultation on the implementation of workplace relations reforms, together with employer groups, unions, and other key stakeholders

- shifting the way governments work together, such as the shared stewardship model under the National Skills Agreement, supporting governments to work collaboratively and purposefully towards priorities
- embedding and participating in tripartite governance and practices, making sure perspectives of both workers and industry are integral to our institutional frameworks
- working with Australian Government departments, government representatives from partner countries and other international stakeholders to operationalise the PALM scheme. This strategic approach supports economic development in partner countries and addresses labour shortages in Australia
- engaging internationally through overseas posts, bilateral partnerships, and multilateral forums in alignment with the government's commitments and in support of our priorities.

It is critical that our work reflects our diverse communities. Respectful, innovative and dynamic partnerships, and placing the needs of those we serve first, are essential components of our approach. We thank our social and academic partners for their continued willingness to engage deeply with us, to help ensure our policies, programs and initiatives are informed by lived-experience, local and industry knowledge, and best practice expertise.

## We are committed to engaging genuinely and maintaining meaningful relationships with partners and stakeholders.

#### Figure 2.2: Our cooperation



## Our corporate strategies and operations

The department's corporate strategies, plans, frameworks and operations are central to our ability to undertake our key activities and achieve our purpose. This includes supporting our ministers, our people and the Australian public by effectively and efficiently managing:

- resources, including people, infrastructure and finances
- information, communications and digital technologies and solutions
- security, legal, risk, integrity and assurance matters
- research, analysis and data.

We are transforming our corporate capabilities to improve how we deliver on our purpose. We make connections across the department and partner with policy and program areas to help them develop and deliver integrated policy and services.

In addition to supporting the department, we provide core ICT services to 8 partner agencies. We also support several partner agencies in the design, build and maintenance of client-facing digital systems.

#### People

We strive to lead the way in cultivating a safe, secure and capable workforce. Our people are core to our successful delivery of government priorities that enrich Australian communities.

Our People Strategy 2024–27 sets out our vision for an inclusive, curious, collaborative, adaptable and high-performing workforce. The strategy organises our initiatives to attract, grow and retain talent across 4 people pillars:



Our Strategic Workforce Plan 2023–26 defines our workforces of today and tomorrow and maps the road between them. The department's outcomes and expectations are being shaped by political, economic, social and technological shifts at pace and scale. While the current pace of change is the fastest ever experienced, it is likely to be the slowest we will experience in the years to come. By embracing new ways of working, our workforce will remain skilled, capable and ready to respond to the evolving needs of the government and the Australian public.

Over the life of the Strategic Workforce Plan, we will build on its strong foundations to cultivate a more diverse and dynamic workforce. We will build leaders at all levels to foster inclusion, stewardship, integrity and accountability. We will be exemplars in collaboration and co-design, partnering with stakeholders and connecting with communities.

We continue to progress a range of initiatives to develop our workforce, informed by our People Strategy and our Strategic Workforce Plan. These include:

- implementing our first enterprise agreement and associated policies and guidelines
- finalising our Diversity and Inclusion Action Plan, which will articulate our commitment to attract, grow, retain and harness the diversity of our people
- continuing to attract and retain talent by leveraging our national footprint and our posture on flexible work
- developing a workplace strategy that sets out a contemporary work design for our people, place and technology functions
- delivering on our culture program by embedding our culture statement and employee value proposition to build on the TeamDEWR ethos and culture
- implementing our Innovate RAP to advance reconciliation across our workforce
- investing in capability development, with a focus on growing our leaders of today and tomorrow, high-performing hybrid teams, and cultural and psychological safety
- developing a reward and recognition framework to recognise and celebrate our people and their achievements
- refining our recruitment and onboarding experience to ensure new starters feel welcome, valued and inspired to achieve results
- continuing to engage and consult with our people through our People, Culture and Engagement Committee, Diversity and Inclusion Advisory Committee, Consultative Committee, Work Health and Safety Committee, and diversity networks.

Note: The plans, frameworks and strategies referenced throughout this document will be reviewed and updated over the 4 year period covered by this corporate plan.

Figure 2.3: Our people

#### **4,299** APS employees<sup>1</sup>

Made up of:

ONGOING	NON-ONGOING	FULL-TIME	PART-TIME
4,046	253	3,727	572
94.1%	5.9%	86.7%	13.3%

FEMALE <sup>2</sup>	MALE <sup>2</sup>	X <sup>2</sup> (INDETERMINATE/INTERSEX/ UNSPECIFIED)
2,589	1,700	10
60.2%	39.6%	0.2%

#### 772 Contractors<sup>3</sup>

Made up of:

ICT⁴	NON-ICT
577	195

#### **Diversity**

APS employees<sup>1</sup> self-identified as:

FIRSTNATIONS	CULTURALLY AND LINGUISTICALLY DIVERSE <sup>5</sup>
89	1,261
2.1%	29.3%

DEWR workforce<sup>6</sup> self-identified as:

PERSON WITH DISABILITY	LGBTQIA+	NEURODIVERGENT
10.9%	9.8%	10.0%

<sup>1</sup> APS employee data, headcount as at 30 June 2024.

<sup>2</sup> Based on 3 options - male, female and X (indeterminate/intersex/unspecified) - provided to respondents when asked to specify their gender.

<sup>3</sup> DEWR workforce data, contractor headcount as at 30 June 2024. The department engages contractors on a temporary basis to undertake a defined task or for a defined period under the supervision of APS staff. This includes where we require specialist skill sets that are not available in the department, or where engaging ongoing or non-ongoing employees is not appropriate.

<sup>4</sup> The department uses its ICT capability and resources to share ICT services with other Australian Government agencies under memorandum of understanding (MOU) arrangements. This includes desktop and mobile computing support, application and website development, hosting services, and a security-classified segregated PROTECTED environment.

<sup>5</sup> Cultural and linguistic diversity refers to people who were born outside Australia and/or whose first language was not exclusively English. This aligns with the APS Culturally and Linguistically Diverse Employment Strategy reportable benchmark definition.

<sup>6 2024</sup> APS Census, based on an 86% response rate, which includes contractors.

#### Strategic Commissioning Framework

The Strategic Commissioning Framework, released by the Australian Public Service Commission (APSC) on 1 December 2023, delivers on the government's commitment to reduce outsourcing, prioritise direct employment and strengthen APS capability.

The framework requires that the core work of the APS must be done by its core workforce: APS employees. Core work means work that is essential to delivering the enduring functions of an agency and is required on a regular and ongoing basis.

The department's Strategic Workforce Plan 2023–26 articulates our commitment to be a model employer in cultivating a secure, stable and capable public sector workforce in alignment with APS reform outcomes. It identifies core work for the department that must not be outsourced, including key focus areas in legal, policy and procurement job families.

We have taken rapid action to embed the Strategic Commissioning Framework in our internal processes, systems and governance. The outcome of these actions has been a reduction in outsourced core work and a decrease in overall external workforce relative to our total workforce.

In 2024–25, the department will continue our commitment to building a capable APS workforce in alignment with the Strategic Commissioning Framework. Having already achieved a reduction in outsourcing of core work, we have set a target for 2024–25 of not increasing our external workforce performing core work.

The department engages a dynamic and skilled external workforce to perform non-core work, in alignment with the framework principles, to deliver on our purpose. We will continue to responsibly outsource work to meet demands, such as shortterm surge capacity or specialist capabilities, underpinned by robust framework implementation and monitoring practices.

#### Data and analytics

The department collects a wealth of data across our skills, employment and workplace relations activities. This informs our decisions when delivering our programs, forming policies and undertaking evaluations. The department's Data Strategy 2024–27 outlines key activities to build on our data governance foundations, enhance our data capability, develop our data technology ethically, and transform our data analytics, evaluation and integration.

In 2024–25, the department's Chief Data Officer, working with the Data Governance Committee, will continue to strategically drive reform and develop a consistent approach to data governance and data sharing within the department and the broader portfolio. We will continue to:

- harness insights from our data assets to inform policy development and program design
- strengthen our data capability and culture
- continue to manage our data safely and securely and to protect the privacy of individuals.

## Information and communications technology

Developing secure, robust and fit-for-purpose ICT infrastructure, end-user equipment, business applications and services helps the department deliver better employment, skills and workplace relations outcomes. It also benefits other people and organisations who rely on our ICT to receive the support they need.

The department's Digital Business Strategy guides our ICT direction and supports digital service delivery to our users. The strategy outlines 4 key shifts to transform the digital experience we provide:

- facilitating simple access for users
- creating cohesive and reliable digital experiences
- improving the way we use our data to enhance services
- supporting policy development by ensuring our solutions are modern, integrated and connected.

In 2024–25 we will continue to deliver cohesive and data-driven digital business services to our users and shared services partners. The shared services we offer are tailored to the specific requirements of each partner agency. They include application hosting, ICT service management, project delivery, and investment design and planning. We will continue to contribute to cross-government initiatives and ensure alignment with whole-of-government strategies and approaches. We will develop systems in a secure and compliant way, with the privacy of users' data at the core of our design-led approaches. To protect our users and the data entrusted to us, we continue to invest in and strengthen the security of our ICT network, systems, and data holdings by focusing on our maturity levels against the Australian Cyber Security Centre's Essential Eight mitigation strategies to prevent harmful cyber incidents.

The department operates ICT infrastructure across on-premises data centres and public cloud networks in accordance with the Australian Government Secure Cloud Strategy. We are committed to modernising our IT infrastructure and updating end-user platforms for secure and reliable use. We are also promoting digital literacy across the department and partner agencies, fostering innovation and exploring the ethical use of Al. We will continue to align with whole-of-government direction and strategies, including the Data and Digital Government Strategy, the Australian Government Architecture, and the Australian Cyber Security Strategy.

In 2024–25 we will continue to build ICT, digital and data capability in line with our workforce strategy by recruiting and developing new starters through our entry-level programs and investing in the skills of our people. We will continue to offer attractive career pathways by fostering an inclusive, collaborative and contemporary work environment. We will collaborate with the APSC's Emerging Talent Programs Team to administer 3 ICT entry-level programs for the department: the Digital Traineeship Program, the Digital Cadetship Program and the Digital Graduate Program. We will also continue to engage IT Australian School-Based Apprentices.

#### Infrastructure and facilities

The Department of Employment and Workplace Relations shares multiple property leases around Australia with the Department of Education, some of which are set to expire. This provides the opportunity to consolidate and rationalise our leased footprint with more energy-efficient fit-outs and buildings in line with the Net Zero in Government Operations Strategy, and to modernise our workspaces to support new ways of working.

Our updated office fit-outs will incorporate flexible workspaces, collaboration areas, quiet or focus rooms, and storage lockers that will facilitate a shift towards team-based desk sharing. Following a pilot program across our Melbourne offices in 2023, the department has developed a schedule for phased rollout of desk-sharing during 2024–25. By sharing our office space at a team level, we will optimise our leased footprint, while catering for individual work patterns and ensuring that we have the capacity to accommodate our staff working from the office in all locations.

#### Financial management

Effective financial management is a key element of the department's sustainability, performance and accountability. Our approach to financial management enables our staff and stakeholders to access the right financial information to make informed decisions. Our Finance Strategy sets out the department's approach to supporting our financial sustainability through timely and informed investment of our financial resources, guided by key principles.

These principles are:

- being strategic and forward looking in our capability, development, and investment in financial literacy
- maintaining financial systems that support the delivery of our business outcomes and provide consistent reporting
- implementing strong governance and financial controls to support our approach
- operating within the resources provided by the government and harnessing opportunities in the external Budget cycle.

Our Portfolio Budget Statements 2024–25 contain further information regarding the department's Budget estimates (departmental and administered), average staffing levels, budgeted financial statements and high-level performance information for the reporting period.

## Embedding a positive risk culture

#### Our risk culture

We recognise that to support the department's purpose our staff must have a positive risk culture. This means a culture in which we take appropriate, well-informed and considered risks that enable us to deliver outcomes we might not otherwise achieve.

We consider a positive risk culture to be a shared set of values and behaviours for our staff, describing how we engage with risk in our day-to-day activities. By promoting consideration of both the threat and the opportunity of risk, we strengthen our risk culture and increase our departmental risk maturity and capability.

## Enterprise risk management arrangements

The department is managing risks in accordance with the Commonwealth Risk Management Policy. We implement this through our Accountable Authority Instruction for Risk Management and our Enterprise Risk Management Policy and Framework.

We encourage our staff to embrace risk management to inform decision-making. Our risk management arrangements guide how we consider and communicate risks, including those we share with our stakeholders. Working collaboratively, both internally and externally, enables us to manage shared risk with a common purpose.

Our goal is to achieve an appropriate balance between taking some risks and managing other risks so that we can maximise opportunity, protect our interests and minimise disruption to our critical business functions.

#### **Risk governance**

Effective governance arrangements support positive engagement with risk and create an environment that promotes both compliance and innovation in delivering outcomes.

We have built appropriate frameworks and systems to oversee our enterprise risk management arrangements. We have a clear understanding of the department's strategic risks, and this drives our strategic thinking and risk-informed discussions at meetings of the Executive Board and the Audit and Risk Committee.

By encouraging risk discussions, we use our governance committees to prepare for emerging challenges and support appropriate oversight of our enterprise risk management arrangements.

Our Chief Risk Officer champions our risk culture and plays a central role in creating a positive risk environment with transparent reporting to our governance committees. A dedicated enterprise risk team supports the Chief Risk Officer.

#### Strategic risk environment

For each of our 8 strategic risks we clearly identify our risk focus areas and mitigation strategies (Figure 2.4). This approach supports holistic risk management by providing staff with a line of sight between the operational risks they manage and the department-level strategic risks.

We regularly monitor these risks through our governance arrangements to allow us to adjust our control environment and ensure they remain within our risk appetite.

#### Figure 2.4: Strategic risks in 2024-25

#### Risk focus areas

(our operational risk environment)

#### STRATEGIC RISK 1 – DELIVERY

#### The delivery risks relate to:

- Reforms and organisational transformation
- Rapid implementation
- Prioritisation of activities
- Changes to program and project intent
- Providing value for money
- Providers and workers
- Australian communities
- Procurement, MOUs, and contracts
- Services to other clients

#### **STRATEGIC RISK 2 - CULTURE**

#### The culture risks relate to:

- Historical machinery of government changes
- Siloed business area practices
- Values and leadership
- Lack of innovation
- Diversity and inclusion
- Ethics and integrity

Our culture **may not foster an environment where staff feel safe**, learn from mistakes, speak up or feel respected for their values.

Working in isolation, without common priorities, has the potential to create a risk of the department **not being able to innovate** or work as a **connected TeamDEWR**. The department works with government and key stakeholders to ensure our key priorities align to reforms and support the effective delivery of our outcomes for the people for whom they are intended.

Mitigation strategies

We implement effective management and prioritisation of our programs, projects and services to ensure efficient and ethical delivery, including use of Commonwealth funding.

We are invested in transforming the way we work with First Nations people and organisations to build capability and ensure programs and services are built on shared-decision-making.

The department promotes a culture that fosters diversity and inclusivity. We insist on integrity in all we do, with a particular focus on fairness in our recruitment and procurement practices.

Our governance arrangements, strategies and frameworks assist us to prioritise what we do and provide options for our people to balance work and life commitments.

We encourage our people to be curious and find innovative solutions to achieve shared outcomes.

#### **STRATEGIC RISK 3 – PEOPLE**

#### The people risks relate to:

- Recruiting skilled people
- Retaining loyal and capable staff
- Redirecting resources
- Staff capacity and burnout
- Physical and psychosocial safety of staff
- Flexible and unique ways of working

Our ability to adapt our recruitment practices to attract the right skilled people with the right capabilities, while retaining skilled staff, in the current labour market is **potentially compromised** by a national skills shortage.

DEWR's people strategies and manager capability may be ineffective, risking the safety and wellbeing of our people or non-compliance. The department has flexible recruitment solutions to enable skilled personnel to be employed nationally.

Our flexible and remote working arrangements promote a positive work-life balance, and wellbeing outcomes, for our people.

Our managers lead by example and support building the capability of our people through targeted training and professional development programs.

#### Strategic risks

DEWR's ability to deliver its key

resourcing constraints.

programs, projects and services on time,

the government and communities may

on budget and to the expectation of

**be compromised** in an environment of reform, competing priorities and

#### **Risk focus areas** (our operational risk environment)

#### **STRATEGIC RISK 4 – STAKEHOLDERS**

#### The stakeholder risks relate to:

- Commonwealth government and ministers
- State and territory governments
- Private sector and industry
- Australian communities
- International communities
- External providers

Our ability to achieve shared outcomes **could be affected** by ineffective engagement with our ministers, our states and territories, industry, and our key stakeholders.

Strategic risks

We are committed to building and maintaining collaborative and respectful relationships with our stakeholders. This is facilitated through regular and ongoing engagement, bipartisan approaches and taking an informed view of complex matters and negotiations.

We proudly embed Closing the Gap initiatives to foster strengthening and establishing formal partnerships intended to support and engage First Nations people in decision-making.

#### STRATEGIC RISK 5 - POLICY

#### The policy risks relate to:

- Policy design and rapid implementation
- Changes to policy intent
- Measuring policy performance
- Providing evidence-based advice
- Providing value for money

Good policy to support government decision-making **could be hindered** by a lack of internal policy capability, evidence and robust data.

This is coupled with an environment of fast-paced delivery, broad reforms and constrained timeframes.

We ensure that stakeholder engagement is prioritised in the design and implementation of policy to ensure that outcomes are achieved for the people they are intended to support. This is done by conducting thorough evaluations and analysis to support evidence-based policy decision-making.

We build the capability of our people through mentoring, targeted training and professional development programs. We focus on collaboration to ensure thoughtful and considered responses to policy design and implementation.

A key priority is our commitment to implementing community-informed policy with First Nations people.

#### STRATEGIC RISK 6 - FINANCE AND REGULATORY

### The finance and regulatory risks relate to:

- Federal and internal budget constraints
- Procurements and contracts
- Payments to external parties
- Insurance and asset management
- Breaches of compliance and legislation
- Privacy, fraud or corruption
- Legal, freedom of information (FOI) and public interest disclosure

Delivery of our policies, programs, projects and services within the current financial environment **may be compromised and affect** our ability to support people to have safe, secure and well-paid jobs.

Funding limitations **could impact our operating environment** and put pressure on our internal financial management arrangements. These pressures **could create** situations where privacy, integrity and compliance **may be compromised**, potentially leading to fraud and corruption incidents. We have robust governance arrangements in place to oversee our legislative and regulatory obligations.

Our internal and external financial management arrangements support the delivery of our priorities in accordance with the responsible use of Commonwealth resources (efficient, effective, economical and ethical) under the *Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013.* 

#### Mitigation strategies

**Risk focus areas** (our operational risk environment)

#### Strategic risks

Mitigation strategies

#### STRATEGIC RISK 7 - INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATIONS TECHNOLOGY

#### The ICT risks relate to:

- ICT infrastructure and historical systems
- ICT security and cyber threat prevention
- ICT modernisation, development and delivery
- Management of artificial intelligence

Delivery of ICT projects **may be hindered** by our inability to recruit skilled ICT labour or to scale up to meet demand.

Our ICT systems **may be disrupted** if not adequately funded, managed or protected from cyber security threats, impacting business delivery and the services we provide our customers. We invest in our ICT systems and people through processes to maintain high system reliability, availability and serviceability, and to protect from cyber threats in accordance with the Protective Security Policy Framework.

The department undertakes prioritisation of the ICT program to manage delivery priorities, ensure clarity on program and project scope and consider emerging technology and threats.

Physical security

#### **STRATEGIC RISK 8 – INFORMATION AND DATA**

## The information and data risks relate to:

- Data collection, retention, sharing and disposal
- Data security
- FOI and privacy of the data we keep
- Records and information management

Our information and data **may be** stolen, leaked, altered or destroyed, if our people, processes or technology are not appropriately secured, or our data collection, retention, disposal and sharing is not managed appropriately. We manage and protect data risks through our governance arrangements and building data capability and understanding with our people through our data stewards and asset owners.

Our policies, frameworks and adherence to the Protective Security Policy Framework protects our data from cyber security threats while supporting our people to effectively manage data and our information records.

**Our risk culture** fosters an environment where risk management is prioritised, understood, and used to make decisions – where good risk behaviours are valued and rewarded.

**Our risk appetite** supports positive risk engagement, considered risk taking and good decision-making, while also seeking benefits and opportunities.

**Our control environment** is informed by Australian Government operations, Commonwealth legislation, regulations, and policies. This underpins our departmental governance and accountability arrangements, including our ethical values and Integrity settings.

## **Operating risk environment**

Our operating risk environment (Figure 2.5) connects our enterprise risk management arrangements, internal guidance and resources with whole-of-government legislation and standards.

We use our enterprise risk systems to embed risk assessments across all our functions. We integrate various risk management approaches into our Enterprise Risk Management Policy and Framework. Taking the government's Climate Risk and Opportunity Management Program into account, we are working to integrate the identification, assessment and management of climate risks into all of the department's activities.

Our mandatory risk plans must address culture and people; work health and safety; fraud and corruption; data and personal information; child safety; climate; and finance and resource risks.

#### Figure 2.5: Our operating risk environment



#### **DEWR Enterprise Risk Management Policy and Framework**



## Our performance



## Our performance

The department is committed to undertaking meaningful performance monitoring and planning practices and has a culture of continuous improvement.

We take an integrated planning approach to enable a cohesive process and to promote transparency and accountability. This includes:

- detailing the allocation of resources within the Employment and Workplace Relations portfolio in the Portfolio Budget Statements
- completing interconnected business, workforce and risk plans

- developing individual performance agreements for staff
- regularly monitoring performance measures
- publishing our annual report and annual performance statements to formally demonstrate how we have delivered on our purpose and key activities as set out in our corporate plan.



#### Figure 3.1: Our performance planning and reporting process

## Our performance framework

The department's performance information, monitoring and reporting framework is underpinned by the Commonwealth Performance Framework and requirements in the PGPA Act and the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Rule 2014 (PGPA Rule). Our performance tools and guidance material have been designed to reflect and support our commitment to developing meaningful, transparent and accurate performance reporting. We undertake regular reviews of our performance information and key activities as part of our performance culture.

## Measuring our performance

The department's performance measures and results demonstrate how we are delivering on our purpose. Each performance measure in this plan will be acquitted through our 2024–25 annual performance statements, providing accountability to the public and the Australian Parliament. Throughout the year we provide the Executive Board with regular reports assessing and monitoring our performance information.



## Our regulatory performance

#### The Federal Safety Commissioner

The Federal Safety Commissioner and the Office of the Federal Safety Commissioner (OFSC) operate within the department and have regulatory functions, including to develop, implement, administer and promote the Work Health and Safety Accreditation Scheme (WHS Scheme) for Australian Government funded building and construction work.

The Federal Safety Commissioner and the OFSC oversee compliance by companies, accredited under the WHS Scheme, with scheme requirements via onsite safety system auditing and reporting of safety incidents.

#### Regulatory performance measure

The regulatory performance measure for the Federal Safety Commissioner and the OFSC is:

Total Recorded Injury Frequency Rate (TRIFR) collectively reported by companies accredited under the Work Health and Safety Accreditation Scheme is lower than the previous calendar year.

This stretch measure assesses and compares the overall impact of the Federal Safety Commissioner's performance of their functions described in the *Federal Safety Commissioner Act 2022* annually through the use of safety performance data of companies in the building and construction industry accredited under the WHS Scheme. Safety performance is influenced by the WHS Scheme and the actions of the Federal Safety Commissioner and the OFSC. However, other factors will also affect the safety performance of companies – for example, regulatory actions by state and territory safety regulators and unilateral actions by companies to improve safety.

The TRIFR is collectively reported by accredited companies to the OFSC. The annual target for the OFSC is for the TRIFR rate to be lower than the previous calendar year. This measure assesses the effectiveness of the WHS Scheme. It reflects the overall impact of the OFSC's work and aligns with the principles of regulatory best practice.

For more information about this performance measure, see measure WR004 in the <u>Our performance</u> <u>measures</u> section of this plan.

#### Regulatory approach

The OFSC works to align its regulatory performance to the 3 key principles of regulatory best practice:

- continuous improvement and building trust
- risk based and data driven
- collaboration and engagement.

For further information about the Federal Safety Commissioner's regulatory functions and approach, see their:

- website: <u>www.fsc.gov.au</u>
- Ministerial Statement of Expectations
- Statement of Intent.

## Our performance measures

The department's performance measures for 2024–25 to 2027–28 presented in this plan show how each measure relates to outcomes, programs and key activities.

The following performance measure tables establish targets, where appropriate, and briefly indicate the methodology for determining achievement against each target. Where more than one target relates to a single performance measure, the result of each component is intended to be reported individually.

The department expects to report achievement against these targets in the 2024–25 annual performance statement.

## 'the department's performance measures show how each measure relates to outcomes, programs and key activities'



#### Employment and workforce performance

Outcome statement 1: Foster a productive and competitive labour market through policies and programs that assist job seekers into work, including secure work, and meet employer and industry needs.

#### Program 1.1 - Employment Services

The employment services system has the following key objectives:

- to help job seekers find and keep a job
- to deliver high-quality and efficient employment services
- to support target groups to improve their work readiness and find employment.

Key activi	y activity   Provide quality services to job seekers and employers				١	lears re	ported	in
Program	Performance measure		Target	Methodology	2024 -25	2025 -26	2026 -27	2027 -28
1.1	Proportion of participants who are satisfied with the overall quality of services delivered <sup>7</sup>	a)	Workforce Australia Online: 60% or higher	Proportion of a representative sample of participants, who indicate they are satisfied with the services received during the reference period.		<u> </u>		
		b)	Workforce Australia Services: 66% or higher	Weighted responses reporting that participants are satisfied or very satisfied with the overall quality of services over weighted number of responses	~	~	~	~
	[EM002]	c)	Workforce Australia – Transition to Work: 75% or higher	to the survey question. Data source: DEWR Post-Program Monitoring – Online Services Satisfaction Survey and Quality and Progress Survey				
1.1	Proportion of employers who are satisfied with the assistance from Australian Government employment services	80%	6 or higher	The proportion of employers that are satisfied with the assistance from Australian Government employment services <sup>8</sup> , based on their most recent recruitment experience, over a 12-month period.	~	~	~	~
	[EM010]			Data source: Jobs and Skills Australia, Recruitment Experiences and Outlook Survey				

<sup>7</sup> This performance measure has been updated to incorporate additional targets for Workforce Australia Online and Workforce Australia – Transition to Work. The measure text and methodology have been updated to reflect this.

<sup>8</sup> Satisfaction levels may reflect employers experience with employment services that are smaller and beyond what the department offers, where they were delivered by the same provider under other government programs (such as Disability Employment Services and the Community Development Program) or in a private capacity.

Program	Performance measure	Target	Methodology	2024 -25	2025 -26	2026 -27	2027 -28
1.1	Investment per employment outcome	\$3,500 or lower per employment outcome	The investment per employment outcome is calculated by dividing variable Workforce Australia Services expenditure by the estimated number of employed participants using Workforce Australia Services.				
	[EM011]		The aggregated actual variable expenditure in providing Workforce Australia Services over a reporting period over the estimated number of employed participants using Workforce Australia Services. Data sources: DEWR Post-Program Monitoring – Labour Force Survey, DEWR program administrative data from the ESSWeb system and DEWR departmental administrative data for program expenditure	*	*	*	*
1.1	Average time to process decision-ready employer applications to join the Pacific Australia Labour Mobility (PALM) scheme	12 weeks or less	Processing time is measured from when a PALM scheme application is considered decision ready until that application is finalised. <sup>9</sup> The sum of the total time to process all decision-ready PALM scheme applications finalised in the reporting period over the total number of decision-ready applications finalised in the reporting period. Data sources: Pacific Australia Labour Mobility Information System and DEWR program administrative data	~	~	~	~

<sup>9 &#</sup>x27;Decision ready' refers to DEWR receiving all application information and supporting documentation required for assessment. A 'decision ready' application is finalised when it is provisionally approved or not approved.

Key activi	ey activity   Support job seekers to achieve sustainable employment					Years reported in			
Program	Performance measure		Target	Methodology	2024 -25	2025 -26	2026 -27	202 -28	
1.1	Proportion of Workforce Australia Services participants who achieve a 26-week employment outcome [EM005]	159	6 or higher	The proportion of participants in Workforce Australia Provider Services who recorded at least one job placement which converted to a 26-week outcome, over a 12-month period. Data source: DEWR program administrative data from the ESSWeb system	*	*	*	~	
1.1	Proportion of participants in work or study 3 months after exiting services	a) b)	Workforce Australia Online: 80% or higher Workforce Australia	The proportion of a representative sample of participants, who indicate they are in work and/or study about 3 months after exiting employment services.					
			Australia Services: 60% or higher	Weighted responses reporting participants					
		c)	Workforce Australia – Transition to Work: 60% or higher	are employed and/or studying over weighted number of responses to the survey question (asked of participants who have exited employment services).	Ţ	Ţ	Ţ		
	[EM006]			Data source: DEWR Post- Program Monitoring – Labour Force Survey					
	ty   Support target groups to i for employment <sup>10</sup>			Years reported in					
---------	--	---------------	---	-------------------	-------------	-------------	-------------		
Program	Performance measure	Target	Methodology	2024 -25	2025 -26	2026 -27	2027 -28		
1.1	Proportion of Workforce Australia Services participants who believe working with their provider has improved their chances of getting a job	66% or higher	Proportion of a representative sample of participants, who indicate that services received improved their chances of getting a job during the reference period.						
			Weighted responses reporting that services received by participants improved their chances of getting a job by a little or a lot over weighted number of responses to the survey question.	~	~	~	~		
	[EM009]		Data source: DEWR Post- Program Monitoring – Quality and Progress Survey						

Note: In this corporate plan, 4 new performance measures related to Outcome 1 (EM009, EM010, EM011 and EM012) have been published, and will be reported for the first time in 2024–25. The DEWR 2023–24 Corporate Plan included 5 performance measures (EM001, EM003, EM004, EM007 and EM008) that have been discontinued, and do not appear in this corporate plan.

As outlined in this corporate plan, the department is advising the government on reforming employment services to progress the vision outlined in *Working Future: The Australian Government's White Paper on Jobs and Opportunities* and the government's response to the House of Representatives Select Committee on Workforce Australia Employment Services, which may involve associated changes to performance measures related to Outcome 1.

<sup>10</sup> On 7 December 2023 the government announced that from 1 November 2024, a new voluntary pre-employment service will provide support for eligible parents of young children. The new service, Parent Pathways, will support parents to work towards their employment and education goals. ParentsNext will cease on 31 October 2024. As indicated in the 2023–24 Corporate Plan, the department has not included performance measures for the ParentsNext program for the 2024–25 reporting year. It is anticipated performance measure(s) for Parent Pathways will be developed for inclusion in the department's 2025–26 suite of performance measures.

### Skills and training performance

Outcome statement 2: Promote growth in economic productivity and social wellbeing through access to quality skills and training.

### Program 2.1 – Building Skills and Capability

The government is working to create an effective and efficient skills and training system that is industry led and delivers the skills Australian employers need. Building skills and capabilities is central to Australia's economic growth, competitiveness, and business productivity. The national training system provides employees and potential employees with the skills and capabilities required for a job or pathway into a job.

Key activi	ty   Enhance the quality of voc	cational education and training (VET)			Years reported in				
Program	Performance measure		Target		Methodology	2024 -25	2025 -26	2026 -27	2027 -28
2.1	Proportion of VET graduates who are satisfied with the overall quality of the training	a) b) c)	All graduates: 85% or higher First Nations graduates: 85% or higher Female graduates: 85% or higher	Voc (NC	Number of VET graduates who were satisfied or very satisfied with the overall quality of their training, over the total number of VET graduates. Number of First Nations VET graduates who were satisfied or very satisfied with the overall quality of their training, over the total number of First Nations VET graduates. Number of female VET graduates who were satisfied or very satisfied with the overall quality of their training, over the total number of female VET graduates. A source: National Centre for ational Education Research VER) National Student comes Survey	~	~	~	~

Program	Performance measure		Target		Methodology	2024 -25	2025 -26	2026 -27	2027 -28
2.1	Proportion of VET graduates who are employed or enrolled in further study after training	a) b) c)	All graduates: 80% or higher First Nations graduates: 80% or higher Female graduates: 80% or higher	a) b)	Number of VET graduates who had a labour force status of 'employed' or were enrolled in further study at the time of the survey, over the total number of VET graduates. Number of First Nations VET graduates who had a labour force status of 'employed' or were	20			20
					enrolled in further study at the time of the survey, over the total number of First Nations VET graduates.	~	~	~	~
				<b>c</b> )	Number of female VET graduates who had a labour force status of 'employed' or were enrolled in further study at the time of the survey, over the total number of female VET graduates.				
	[SK002]				a source: NCVER National dent Outcomes Survey				

	with the required skills				Years reported in				
Program	Performance measure	Target	Methodology	2024 -25	2025 -26	2026 -27	2027 -28		
2.1	Proportion of apprenticeship commencements in priority occupations	Maintain or increase compared to previous year	Proportion of apprenticeship commencements in priority occupations in the first 6 months of the financial year compared to the number of commencements in priority occupations for the first 6 months of the previous financial year. Data source: NCVER, National Apprentice and Trainee Collection and annual Australian Apprenticeship Priority Lists	~	~	~	~		
2.1	Proportion of employers that report use of the VET system <sup>11</sup>	50% or higher	Number of businesses with employees that, in the previous 12 months, have used nationally recognised training, have had apprentices/trainees, or have had jobs that require a vocational qualification, over the total number of businesses with employees. Data source: NCVER, Survey of Employers' Use and Views of the VET System (SEUV)	×	~	×	~		

<sup>11</sup> The survey used to report on this measure is run every 2 years.

Key activi	y activity   Improve language, literacy, numeracy and digital (LLND) skills for target groups			Years reported in			
Program	Performance measure	Target	Methodology	2024 -25	2025 -26	2026 -27	2027 -28
2.1	Proportion of participant assessments in the Skills for Education and Employment (SEE) program that show language, literacy, numeracy and digital literacy skills improvements <sup>12</sup>	80% or higher	Number of assessments undertaken by SEE participants which achieve an increase to their Australian Core Skills Framework (ACSF) or Digital Literacy Skills Framework (DLSF) level in one or more indicators over the total number of assessments completed by SEE participants after completing 200+ hours of training or completion of a project. Data source: ACSF/DLSF assessments completed by service providers	*	~	~	~

### Program 2.2 - VET Student Loans

The program aims to remove the up-front cost barriers to training to increase access and participation. This is achieved through the provision of income-contingent loans for students undertaking certain higher level vocational education and training (VET) courses.

Key activit	Key activity   Reduce barriers to undertaking quality VET			Years reported in			
Program	Performance measure	Target	Methodology	2024 -25	2025 -26	2026 -27	2027 -28
2.2	Proportion of units of study successfully completed by VET Student Loans (VSL) students [SK007]	70% or higher	Number of reported equivalent full-time study load (EFTSL) units of study passed, over the total number of EFTSL units of study attempted excluding any ongoing units of study. Data source: DEWR program administrative data, interfacing with Tertiary Collection of Student Information	~	*	*	*
2.2	Proportion of students who report that financial barriers to training were removed by participation in the VSL program [SK009]	No target <sup>13</sup>	Proportion of students who say they would not have undertaken training without VET Student Loans access. Data source: Student electronic Commonwealth Assistance Form (e-CAF) survey results	~	~	~	~

<sup>12</sup> The performance measure text and scope have been updated to reflect the conditions of the redesigned SEE program which began on 1 July 2024.

<sup>13</sup> Reporting of this measure uses responses to a question added to the e-CAF survey. Targets for future years will be set following collection of baseline results.

### Program 2.3 – Nuclear-powered Submarine Program

The program maintains a taskforce to provide advice on utilising Australia's skills and training system to support the workforce requirements of the Nuclear-powered Submarine Program.

Key activit	Key activity   Respond to national future skills needs through access to VET graduates with the required skills					Years reported in				
Program	Performance measure	Target	Methodology	2024 -25	2025 -26	2026 -27	2027 -28			
2.3	Support to the Nuclear-powered Submarine Program is provided through engagement and advice on workforce and training.	No target <sup>14</sup>	The department will report information on engagement and advice activities <sup>15</sup> that have been undertaken under this program during 2024–25.	~	×	×	×			
	[SK010]		Data source: Internal departmental records							

Note: In this corporate plan, 3 new performance measures related to Outcome 2 (SK009, SK010 and SK011) have been published, and will be reported for the first time in 2024–25. The DEWR 2023–24 Corporate Plan included 3 performance measures (SK003, SK006 and SK008) that have been discontinued, and do not appear in this corporate plan.

<sup>14</sup> The advice and support provided by the department to the Australian Submarine Agency (ASA) assists them in their decision-making on program design and workforce arrangements. The ASA Corporate Plan sets out ASA's responsibilities for enabling the necessary workforce arrangements for the Nuclear-powered Submarine Program. Performance measures and targets related to those responsibilities sit outside this portfolio.

<sup>15</sup> There are nil administered funds under this measure. Departmental funding maintains staff within the taskforce in 2024–25. Activities to be reported will reflect relevant key instances of departmental officers engaging and providing advice.

### Workplace relations performance

Outcome statement 3: Facilitate jobs growth, including secure work, through policies and programs that promote fair, productive and safe workplaces.

### Program 3.1 - Workplace Support

This program contributes to the outcome through:

- the promotion of fair workplaces by ensuring the protection of employee entitlements in certain circumstances
- ensuring the efficient operation of the workplace relations system through initiatives designed to encourage employers and employees to adopt fair, productive, flexible and safe workplace relations.

Key activit	ty   Promote fair, productive a	and safe workplaces through policies and programs			Years reported in				
Program	Performance measure	Target	Methodology	2024 -25	2025 -26	2026 -27	2027 -28		
3.1	Proportion of assessed economic data and analysis to support the effective operation of the workplace relations system that is timely	100%	Timeliness will be assessed on compliance with the following deadlines: the government's submission to the Fair Work Commission's Annual Wage Review submitted by the deadline						
			<ul> <li>each quarterly Trends in Federal Enterprise Bargaining report published on the department's website prior to the end of the subsequent quarter.</li> </ul>	~	~	~	•		
3.1	[WR001] Total Recorded Injury Frequency Rate (TRIFR) collectively reported by companies accredited under the Work Health and Safety Accreditation Scheme	Rate is lower than the previous calendar year	Data source: DEWR program administrative data The TRIFR <sup>16</sup> for all accredited companies is calculated by dividing the total number of safety incidents for all companies by the total number of hours worked. The result is multiplied by 1 million to give a TRIFR per 1 million work hours. Due to the reporting timeframes for accredited companies, this target will be measured over the calendar year rather than the financial year. Data source: Directly from accredited companies	~	~	~	~		

<sup>16</sup> In previous years calculation of the result published for this performance measure was limited to civil and commercial construction activity. From 2024–25 the result will include civil, commercial and residential construction activity.

Key activit	Key activity   Support the protection of workers' entitlements			Years reported in				
Program	Performance measure	Target	Methodology	2024 -25	2025 -26	2026 -27	2027 -28	
3.1	Average processing time for initial claims under the Fair Entitlements Guarantee program	14 weeks or less	The 14-week timeframe is measured from when a claim is made effective to when a claim decision is made.					
			This is a proxy measure of efficiency. When combined with WR003 it provides an understanding of the efficiency of this program. Data source: eFEG	~	~	~	~	
3.1	[WR002] Proportion of claim payments made under the Fair Entitlements Guarantee program that are correct	95% or higher	(SmartClient framework) The Fair Entitlements Guarantee (FEG) Program Management Office administers an accuracy testing process that is based on assessing the accuracy of a random sample of 40 FEG claim decisions per month. Over the course of a year, the results of these monthly assessments provide an annual measure of FEG claim payment accuracy. Data source: eFEG (SmartClient framework)	~	~	~	~	

# Acronyms



### Table 1: Acronyms

Acronym	Meaning
ACSF	Australian Core Skills Framework
AI	artificial intelligence
APS	Australian Public Service
APSC	Australian Public Service Commission
ASA	Australian Submarine Agency
DEWR	Department of Employment and Workplace Relations
DLSF	Digital Literacy Skills Framework
e-CAF	electronic Commonwealth Assistance form
EFTSL	equivalent full-time study load
FEG	Fair Entitlements Guarantee
ICT	information and communications technology
IT	information technology
MOU	memorandum of understanding
NCVER	National Centre for Vocational Education Research
OFSC	Office of the Federal Safety Commissioner
PALM scheme	Pacific Australia Labour Mobility scheme
PGPA Act	Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013
PGPA Rule	Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Rule 2014
RAP	Reconciliation Action Plan
SEE	Skills for Education and Employment
TRIFR	Total Recorded Injury Frequency Rate
VET	vocational education and training
VSL	VET Student Loans
WHS Scheme	Work Health and Safety Accreditation Scheme

## Compliance



### Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Rule 2014 requirements

#### Table 2: PGPA Rule requirements

This corporate plan has been prepared and published in accordance with the requirements of section 35 of the PGPA Act. The following table sets out matters included in compliance with section 16E of the PGPA Rule.

Source	Matters to be included	Page
Introduction		
PGPA Rule 16E(1)	The corporate plan for a Commonwealth entity must cover a period of at least 4 reporting periods for the entity, starting on the first day of the reporting period for which the plan is prepared under paragraph 35(1)(a) of the PGPA Act.	Secretary's introduction pages 6 to 7
PGPA Rule 16E(2)1(a)	The corporate plan must include a statement that the plan is prepared for paragraph 35(1)(b) of the Act.	Secretary's introduction pages 6 to 7
PGPA Rule 16E(2)1(b)	The corporate plan must specify the reporting period for which the plan is prepared.	Secretary's introduction pages 6 to 7
PGPA Rule 16E(2)1(c)	The corporate plan must specify the reporting periods covered by the plan.	Secretary's introduction pages 6 to 7
Purposes		
PGPA Rule 16E(2)2	The corporate plan must state the purposes of the entity.	Our purpose page 8
Key activities		
PGPA Rule 16E(2)3	For the entire period covered by the plan, the corporate plan must outline the key activities that the entity will undertake in order to achieve its purposes.	Our purpose Figure 1.1 page 8
Operating cor	itext	
PGPA Rule 16E(2)4(a)	For the entire period covered by the plan, the corporate plan must state the environment in which the entity will operate.	Our environment pages 11 to 12
PGPA Rule 16E(2)4(b)	For the entire period covered by the plan, the corporate plan must include the strategies and plans the entity will implement to have the capability it needs to undertake its key activities and achieve its purposes.	Our corporate strategies and operations pages 20 to 23
PGPA Rule 16E(2)4(c)	For the entire period covered by the plan, the corporate plan must include a summary of the risk oversight and management systems of the entity, and the key risks that the entity will manage and how those risks will be managed.	Embedding a positive risk culture pages 24 to 27 Operating risk environment page 28

Source	Matters to be included	Page
PGPA Rule 16E(2)4(d)	For the entire period covered by the plan, the corporate plan must include details of any organisation or body that will make a significant contribution towards achieving the entity's purposes through cooperation with the entity, including how that cooperation will help achieve those purposes.	Our cooperation and partnerships pages 18 to 19
PGPA Rule 16E(2)4(e)	For the entire period covered by the plan, the corporate plan must include how any subsidiary of the entity will contribute to achieving the entity's purposes.	Not applicable. The department does not have subsidiaries.
Performance		
PGPA Rule 16E(2)5(a)	For each reporting period covered by the plan, the corporate plan must include details of how the entity's performance in achieving the entity's purposes will be measured and assessed through specified performance measures for the entity that meet the requirements of section 16EA of the PGPA Rule.	<u>Our performance measures</u> pages 34 to 44
PGPA Rule 16E(2)5(b)	For each reporting period covered by the plan, the corporate plan must include details of how the entity's performance in achieving the entity's purposes will be measured and assessed through specified targets for each of those performance measures for which it is reasonably practicable to set a target.	<u>Our performance measures</u> pages 34 to 44
Publication ar	nd distribution	
PGPA Rule 16E(3)	The corporate plan must be published on the entity's website by the last day of the second month of the reporting period for which the plan is prepared.	This corporate plan was published on <u>dewr.gov.au</u> by 31 August 2024.
PGPA Rule 16E(5)	The corporate plan must be given to the responsible Ministers and the Finance Minister as soon as practicable after the plan is prepared; and before the plan, or the version, is published under subsection (3).	This corporate plan was given to the responsible Ministers and the Finance Minister prior to publication.